ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVMM TTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS
March 20, 2006
9:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representative Paul Seaton
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Carl Mses

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Max G uenberg
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 492

"An Act relating to the transfer of the state's interest in
certain gas to the Al aska Retirement Managenent Board for the
pur pose of satisfying the unfunded accrued actuarial liability
of the state and enployers of teachers in the state to state
retirement systens; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 492

SHORT TITLE: NATURAL GAS ROYALTIES TO FUND PERS/ TRS
SPONSOR(S): FI NANCE BY REQUEST

03/ 15/ 06 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 15/ 06 (H) WM FI N
03/ 20/ 06 (H) WeM AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing of HB 492, provided
i nformati on and answered questi ons.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -1- March 20, 2006



Bl LL VAN DYKE, Acting Director

Division of Ol and Gas

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing of HB 492, he expl ained
the possible challenges to the proposed transfer of gas assets
to address the wunfunded liability of the state retirenent
syst ens.

BOB SHEFCHI K, Chief of Staff

Mayor's O fice

Fai rbanks North Star Borough

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 492.

GARY BADER, Chief Investnment Oficer

Treasury Division

Depart nent of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing of HB 492, answered
guesti ons.

TOM BOUTI N, Deputy Conmi ssi oner

Treasury Division

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing of HB 492, provided
i nformati on and answer ed questi ons.

DON BULLOCK, Attorney

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing of HB 492, answered
guestions regarding the possible I egal inplications.

M KE BARNHI LL, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Labor and State Affairs Section

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing of HB 492, answered
questions regarding the possible legal inplications.

DI CK MYLIUS, Acting Director

D vision of Mning, Land and Water
Department of Natural Resources (DNR)
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 2- March 20, 2006



PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing of HB 492, answered
guestions on the DNR fiscal note.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH cal | ed the House Special Conmittee on VWys

and Means neeting to order at 9:01:05 AM Represent ati ves
Weyhrauch, Mses, Seaton, and WIlson were present at the call to
or der. Representati ves Rokeberg and Sanuels arrived as the

meeti ng was in progress.

HB 492- NATURAL GAS ROYALTIES TO FUND PERS/ TRS

[I ncludes brief nmention of SB 141 and HB 475. ]
9:01:18 AM

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 492, "An Act relating to the transfer of the

state's interest in certain gas to the Al aska Retirenent
Managenment Board for the purpose of satisfying the unfunded
accrued actuarial liability of the state and enployers of

teachers in the state to state retirement systens; and providing
for an effective date.”

9:02: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY, Alaska State Legislature, provided
background information to the bill on behalf of the House
Finance Committee of which he is a nenber. He relayed that
passage of SB 141 |ast year and the proposed legislation in HB
475 are initial steps to ensure the $6 billion unfunded
litability of the Public Enployees' Retirenent System (PERS) and
the Teachers' Retirenent System (TRS) does not increase. He
expl ained other attenpts to address the liability: havi ng the
state fund the increases, holding the annual increases to 5

percent, and proposed |legislation addressing everything from
pensi on obligation bonds to continuing the annual paynents. He

noted that the annual paynent is clinbing from "$38 [m||ion]
| ast year [and] will reach its termnal velocity at sonewhere
around $140 million." He opined that whereas there may be "sone
howing" in future discussions, [HB 492] is one possible

solution of several and has trenendous potential for upside
assi stance in addressing the increasing debt.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 3- March 20, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE KELLY directed the committee's attention to the
slideshow information in their packets prepared by Bob Shefchik
from the Fairbanks North Star Borough, one of the organizations
that m ght benefit from the [solution proposed in HB 492]. He
explained that M. Shefchik's prepared information suggests
using future assets to address the liabilities as opposed to
relying solely upon cash paynments or financing through pension
obligation bonds. Representative Kelly noted that on page 2, it
shows the present annual inpact in fiscal year 2007 (FY 07)

totaling $124 nmillion which, with the 5 percent increases per
year, results in annual costs at termnal velocity totaling
approximately $400 mllion a year. He highlighted that

potential gas assets would match future liabilities and "thereby
stop the annual paynent requirenent for the unfunded portion of

[ PERS and TRS]." He remarked that this would result in the
state being "fiscally solvent relative to the unfunded
l[Tability." Furthernmore, in conjunction wth the defined

contribution plan for new hires, he added that a new plan would
be in place enabling nore noney be available for the state, the
university, the nmunicipalities, and the schools. He |listed the
changes for the current year as a result of this plan: the cost
of state governnment would be lowered by $44 nillion; $10 million
would be available to the wuniversity; the nunicipal paynent

costs would be lowered by $26 mllion; and $44 mllion in
funding would be made available to school classroons. He then
listed the results of the plan for FY 08 and beyond: state
government costs lowered by $140 nmillion; $26 nmillion nore to
the university; municipal paynent costs lowered by $55 mllion
and $193 mllion nore for the classroons.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY inforned the commttee that the proposed
transfer of interests in known natural gas reserves would have
no inpact on the permanent fund and other constitutional
obl i gati ons. Furthernore, he said that the anmount of these
transferred assets would be "equal to the future Iliability
stream and, in the event this |egislation passes expeditiously,
it would freeze the PERS and TRS rates beginning in FY O07.
Referring to the reduction of future gas revenue streams, he
opined that it would take "quite a bit of work to evaluate,
apprai se, and identify those resources to be transferred to the
Al aska Retirenent Managenent Board ( ARVB)

9:13: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS asked Representative Kelly if he was
referring to all gas in the state.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -4- March 20, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE KELLY said he was referring specifically to North
Sl ope gas.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS, on the prem se that "the royalty doesn't

exist until the gas hits the ground and is devel oped,"” asked
whet her Representative Kelly neant "only if the natural gas
pipeline is built.” Additionally, given the royalty doesn't

currently exist and the gas pipeline may or may not be built, he
asked Representative Kelly how he ran his nunbers.

9:14: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY suggested that Don Bullock, an attorney
with the Division of Legal and Research Services, address this.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS proceeded to list the other issues he
w shed addressed, such as those regarding private royalties and
the effect on the National Petroleum Reserve-Al aska (NPR-A)
shoul d Al aska royalties be less [than expected]. He al so asked
about different royalty sets per |ease and noted that whereas
the nost common one is 12.5 percent, not all are at this sane
per cent . He concluded that it "seens problematic to try to
value a royalty on sonething which is obviously further along
now than it's ever been ...."

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY said he felt it inportant to note that "the
revenue stream required to extinguish these future liabilities
is also kicked out there; it's a 25-year run." He then inforned
the conmittee that HB 492 currently does not have specific
| anguage addressing municipalities. He expl ained that when the
bill was introduced by the House Finance Commttee, there had
been consi der abl e di scussi on regar di ng whet her t he
muni ci palities should be handled differently than the other
entities. He said that an anendnent had been drafted to include
muni ci palities.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said he would like to address this at a future
nmeet i ng.

9:17:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed his belief that the intent of
this legislation is not to pay the past service cost liability
based on an assunption of obtaining revenues generated through a
gas pipeline that has yet to be built. He said he would like to
know projected increases in the liability until such point in
time that revenues are actually generated. He also relayed that

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 5- March 20, 2006



he had questions regarding the approxinmate 50 percent of the
liability resulting from those federal enployees funded through
the state. He expressed his belief that this legislation
proposes the state pay "that half of the federal liability."

9:19: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS expl ai ned that "the conpanies will get to
book the reserves after [the Federal Energy Regulatory
Comm ssion] (FERC) sanctions the project.” He opined that this
regul atory process would be slow and tedious. Furthernore, once
it's finally conpleted, conpanies will want to book the reserves
"to punp wup their shareholder value" and the state, in
accordance to this legislation, would want to book the reserves
to [pay the unfunded liability]. He expressed his belief that
it would nake better sense to postpone passing this |egislation
until after the regulatory process when the state could better
determ ne which steps to take.

9:21: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in regard to the transfer of assets,
noted that this legislation does not address the selling of
assets by the ARMB. He said that if he were on the ARMB, given
its fiduciary responsibility, he would want to examne how to
noneti ze [assets] in a shorter tine to earn interest to then pay
off the liability. He expressed his belief that this "would be
a transfer out of conplete state control ...." He asked whet her
[HB 492] had any provisions preventing the [ARMB] from using
assets in that way.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH r equested this be addressed by Gary Bader, Chief
| nvestnment O ficer with the Treasury D vision, Departnent of
Revenue (DOR), when he testified.

9:22: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON expressed her concern for postponing
addressing the unfunded liability for another 10 years and said
that the debt would continue "to grow quite a bit in that tine
because we're not doing a thing about it." She asked
Representative Kelly if he discussed the results of delaying
with the actuaries and whether he knew how high the percent
woul d grow shoul d the state del ay.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY said he agreed and that theoretically the
l[tability would grow "until the ranmp on the enployers' shares

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 6- March 20, 2006



hits the terminal velocity and stops that." Furt hernore, he
said that if "the gas interest was not sufficient to generate
t he extingui shnent of that past service liability, [the risk] is
still there.”

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said that she would want specific facts as
to what the percentage of debt would be overall in delaying 10
nore years.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH infornmed the commttee that this infornmation
coul d be obtained fromthe ARMB.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his wunderstanding that [the
proposed legislation] wuld not only address the unfunded
l[iability but would wipe out the past service costs.
Addi tional ly, he relayed that wth assets available to
[acconmplish this], there would be "no ranping up of enployer
fees ... we would go back to just the normal cost because the
system woul d have the assets to equal the liability." He opined
that "under those circunstances, [the state would actually] be
reducing the percentage funding of noney in the fund, and
transferring them to perceived assets that will be nonetized in
the future ...." He noted that because sone of these paynents
are due in the next 10 years, the state will actually be making
the PERS and TRS paynents from noney not yet received, thereby
reduci ng the cash value of all other assets in the fund. How
much of a reduction and how nmuch of the state's other asset base
woul d be | owered by past service cost paynents, are questions he
said he would |ike addressed given the possibility that the gas
may not be flow ng until 2015.

9:26:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY sought confirmation from Representative
Seaton that what he was referring to is a "msmatch." That is,
there would be a risk to having the state begin witing checks
for the actual outflow without the matching inflow of gas
resour ces.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that this is correct though noted it
is different than a past service cost liability growing at 8.25
per cent . Wth this legislation, "we're actually eating up [the
state's] asset base from the rest of the fund," he explained,
and should the gas pipeline project not cone online by 2015, it
woul d be an imaginary asset - "sonmething we think wll equal the
$5 billion net present value ...."

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -7- March 20, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE KELLY said he agrees and that the risk is there.
9:28: 22 AM

BILL VAN DYKE, Acting Drector, Division of Gl and Gas,
Depar t ment of Nat ur al Resources (DNR) rel ayed that he
understands this comrittee is investigating ways to fund the
retirement system and said, "Cbviously, in one way or another,
[ Alaska's] resource wealth is going to be part of that
solution.™ He then presented three significant challenges the
bill presents. The first, he noted, is that not only does the
current or expected gas royalty in the Cook Inlet area fall
short of the [needed] "$5 billion," very little gas is presently
sold or marketed on the North Sl ope. A second concern, he
indicated, is the fact that the transfer of exclusively natura
gas rights, by either the state or a third party, has not been
done to date. He explained that what has previously been
transferred are conplete oil and gas estates to other entities
in land trades or |and assignnents, to such entities as Native
corporations, the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority, the
university, or the federal governnent. However, he relayed that
never before has the state tried to sever oil rights from gas
rights for the purpose of solely transferring the gas rights to
a third party. He then referred to a third concern regarding
the transfer of oil and gas interests which is the fact that a
net of the permanent fund and school fund share has not been

done to date. He clarified that when transferring land to a
third party, "it's been the entire estate, and the permanent
fund loses its right ... to royalties from that transferred
mneral estate.” He opined that reserving or preserving a share

for the state - for either its permanent fund or its school fund
- poses a challenge. Additionally, he noted that the chall enge
woul d be determning who would be responsible to assure that
both these funds receive their share and suggested that this
m ght involve "sone sort of an overriding royalty or
participatory share ... in the fee itself" to [assure] it occurs
and is |l egally binding.

MR. VAN DYKE, drawi ng upon his former training in engineering,
informed the conmittee that natural gas [primarily] exists in
the same reservoirs with oil and that there have been very few
gas-only reservoirs discovered in the North Slope to date. He
listed the nbst common gas accurulations up north and rel ayed
that they are conmbination oil and gas pools which would require
"delicate surgery" to carve out the gas interest alone. He
referred to previous managenent and accounting challenges in
splitting the ownership of oil and gas in the same reservoir,

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 8- March 20, 2006



field, or lease, and expressed his belief that this, in itself,
"really was a headache.” He said that he would recomend
avoiding the split oil and gas ownership if at all possible. He
then highlighted that the total statewide gas royalty revenue
for calendar year 2005 (CY 05) was approximately $61.8 million
gross and about $46.1 nillion net of the permanent fund and
school fund. For North Slope gas alone, he cited that Cy 05
revenue was approximately $11.1 nmillion gross, $8.3 mllion net,
and nost of the gas is otherwse reinjected back into the
ground. Assuming that a value has been assigned to the gas, he
remarked that "sonmewhere between half and all of the total known
royalty gas on the North Sl ope" mght represent an anmount equa
to the $5 billion [needed to fund the state retirement systeni.
He opined that since there is no gas pipeline currently under
construction, it would be a challenge to assign a value for the
gas which, at present, is being re-injected in the ground.
Furthernore, he surm sed that whereas the North Sl ope gas could
be booked as "official reserves," using accepted accounting
standards, "assigning any book value to those resources today is
probably not appropriate.” He informed the commttee that
assigning any value to the yet-to-be-discovered gas on the North
Sl ope - on either unexplored |eases or on unleased state |land -
is nmore of a challenge and one he would not recomend. He
relayed that the exploration risks on these unexplored lands is
too difficult to quantify.

9:37: 00 AM

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH requested M. Van Dyke focus further testinony
on the general concept of the bill. He asked whether the
perspective would be any easier in replacing the words "natura
gas" with the word "oil."

MR. VAN DYKE opined that although it would certainly be easier
to assign a value to the [oil] resource, a question of "split
estate” would still be created. He provided an exanple of this
by noting the different interests, notivations, and nanagenment
practices the ARMB mght have in oil rights versus those wth
interests in gas rights.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked whether the problem would be sonmewhat
easier if the gas was restricted to that of Cook Inlet.

MR. VAN DYKE expressed his belief that it would be easier if the

legislation referred to only the gas in the Cook Inlet, Beluga,
and Kenai fields. However, he renmarked that there isn't a |ot

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -9- March 20, 2006



of value remaining in the Cook Inlet reserves. "W just can't
cone anywhere near $5 billion in value," he said.

9:39: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired as to whether the transfer of the
potential asset versus the transfer of a revenue stream from
t hat asset, would change M. Van Dyke's perception.

MR. VAN DYKE explained that from an accounting and nanagenent
st andpoi nt, those oil and gas revenues specifically dedicated to
funds, such as the pernmanent fund and the school fund, work fine
and far nore weasily than having to transfer "the actual
ownership interest in the resource.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether part of the anticipated
problem in splitting North Slope gas fromoil may in part be a
result of wunequal field shares and the variety of opinions
regardi ng whether to reinject gas or market it.

MR. VAN DYKE affirmed that determining the speed at which fields
are produced is one type of problem that often results in
t ensi on between field owners.

9:41:51 AM

BOB SHEFCHI K, Chief of Staff, Myor's Ofice, Fairbanks North
Star Borough, inforned the commttee that he prepared sone of
the initial concept work and cost savings estinmates available in
the commttee packets. He opined that "the issue of rising PERS
and TRS rates for public enployers really is an inpending

budgetary crisis for years to cone.” Additionally, he remarked
that the $5.7 billion, which "slowy ratchets up 5 percent a
year," is a 20- to 23-year problem for enployers when
determining how to neet payroll expenses and pay bills. He
expressed his belief that HB 492 provides an alternate sol ution
to the annual increase [of 5 percent]. He stated that finding a

different way to neet the past service rate and finding an asset
that would generate cash in the future, "really was the crux

behind [this legislation]." Returning to earlier questions
posed by the conmttee, he explained how he envisions the
concept will work in conjunction with the ARMB. Assum ng that

DNR is able to find sufficient [gas] reserves with assets to
match the $5.7 billion, he relayed that the ARMB would then
value the asset transfer annually as it establishes the rates
He sai d:

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 10- March 20, 2006



If [the project] proceeds and a gas line is in notion,
clearly the value of the gas is nore certain. If in 3
to 5 years, there still is no action, [the state]
could expect a responsible ARMB to wite down the
value of that asset based on the risk of it ever

comng to market. So the wi ndow of potential |oss of
paynents and the increase of the liability, I wouldn't
put at 10 or 15 years. | would put it at 3 or 4
[ years] because [the state] will have an ARMB that's

annual ly going to evaluate the value of the gas."

MR. SHEFCHI K then returned to earlier discussion regarding what
happens should there be no gas pipeline by 2015. He expressed
his belief that although this risk is real, it is one the state
would be aware of prior to 2015 and would then return to the
same solution currently used - that of increasing rates wth
met hods paying off the unknown liability. He suggested that
this scenario mght cost the state "3 years of ratcheting
paynents, not 15 [years]." Although the current solution [for
addressing the long-term liability] is cash-based across 23
years, he opined that it need not be. Rather than using a cash
flow solution, he highlighted that this bill proposes using a
bal ance [sheet] approach by transferring a future asset to
offset a future liability. Additionally, he clarified that the
5 percent annual increases on salaries could be elimnated and
rates set at a 13 to 14 percent normal cost rate. He said:

The committee has already identified a nunber of the

problems - that the value of the gas reserve is
dependent on getting gas to nmarket. In 3 to 5 years
those reserves, if there is no progress on the
gasoline, ... would get witten down to near zero and
we would be at the sanme point we are now at 8 percent
for the 3 or 4 years that ... rates didn't ratchet up
The bill does offset conpeting requirenments of the
constitution: the requirenent to neet pension

liabilities, versus dedicated funds in appropriation
and it does reduce future discretionary revenues from

gas. However, ... they're neither insurnountable
[nor] greater than the problens created by the status
quo.

MR. SHEFCHI K informed the committee that the [Fairbanks North
Star] Borough is supportive of the ideas enbodied in HB 492. He

rel ayed that al though the borough would I|ike to see
muni ci palities included [in the bill], it's "supportive of even
a partial solution to this huge problem"” Referring to [Dr.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -11- March 20, 2006



Pedro] van Meurs' testinony in February, he offered his
understanding that future gas royalties were estimated high
enough to address the state's retirenent liability.

9:48: 58 AM

CHAI R VEEYHRAUCH sought confirmation of his understanding that
the asset is on paper only and that there is no real way for
ARMB to nmonetize that to where the liability is actually
reduced.

MR. SHEFCH K opined that it would be no different than other
assets the state currently has. He referred to the risk of the
gas pipeline not being conpleted and not getting to narket, as
one of the key pieces in valuing the future assets.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH i nquired as to whether there was any benefit to:
i dentifying revenue-producing |ands - whether they are oil, gas,
tinmber, or otherwi se; bestowing the authority to receive and
sell those |ands upon the ARMB; transferring assets to the ARMVB
for the purpose of reducing the unfunded liability; and when
[the liability] reverts to zero, having [the assets] revert to
t he state.

MR. SHEFCHI K remarked that this would only be a benefit if the
state could identify those revenue-producing |ands that were not
al ready commtted el sewhere. Furthernore, should the state pul
a revenue-producing asset from the current mx, he opined that
it would cause a ripple effect throughout state operations. I n
response to Chair Wyhrauch's query that this would hold true
for any commtted resource, he countered that the pension
obligation is different in that it has a constitutional basis
unli ke commtnments to other projects such as those for inproving
state roads or parks.

9:51:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in noting that the state is obligated by
its constitution to nake paynents on the past service costs,
inquired as to why it's necessary to specifically identify "some
future valuation" of gas revenues to pay these costs. He
expressed that he is uncertain as to what the legislation is
effectively trying to acconplish

MR. SHEFCHI K explained that the difference is due to the nature
of the commtment and the identification of the assets.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -12- March 20, 2006



9:53:33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY commented on the differences between
university endowrents and the [transfer of gas assets] proposed
in HB 492. Upon noting that the "valuation can bob up and
down," with increased exposure during this fluctuation, he asked
M. Shefchi k what risks m ght be associated with that.

MR SHEFCH K inforned the conmttee:

If you let it run for 10 years, the risks associated
with that are the current value tinmes 8 percent and
that's bigger than one would want to take. Clearly,
the progress in the next tw or three years would
determ ne whether or not this was continued on or a
different solution would be needed. It really would
have to be treated by the ARMB as a real asset simlar
to a real estate investnment or ... it would just be
putting the problem off into the future ... hoping
that things get better, and that woul d be a bad thing.

MR. SHEFCHI K returned to earlier discussion regarding the state
liability and the percent of federal liability that is passed
t hr ough. He explained that during his five years of finance
work at the Geophysical Institute at the University of Al aska
Fai rbanks (UAF), there were those on federally funded projects -
funds with generally fixed anpbunts and not based on the actual
cost of projects. He relayed that "by having a system that
|owers the retirement cost onto projects, ... it frees up nore
direct costs ... whether it's roads or research, that plows back
into the econony. It does make for a cost share but doesn't
reduce the anount of federal noney that's comng into the state;
it changes it so that it's direct costs.” Additionally, he
opined that as the PERS and TRS rates clinb, those agencies
considering funding research proposals, nmay | ook negatively upon
the retirenent rate being offered. He opined, "It would indeed
hel p offset federal paynents toward PERS and TRS, but [woul dn't]
reduce the amount of federal noney coming into the state; it
woul d just change what it would be paid for."

9:57: 57 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON sought confirmation of his understanding
that the state's current asset base would be reduced in addition

to the lowering of the percentage of funding within the state
system He expressed his belief that "it's much larger than the

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 13- March 20, 2006



8.25 percent interest rate on the noney; it's actually eating up
t he asset.”

MR. SHEFCHI K said he does not know the answer to this because he
doesn't know the cash flow projections of the PERS system

9:59:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS sought confirmation from Representative
Kelly that he was referring specifically to the cash flow and
that the transfer of |eases would not be under ARMB control.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY clarified that whereas the managenent of
the land stays with DNR, the interest in the gas would transfer
"for it to have any value to the ARMB."

9: 59: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG inquired as to whether the title would
rest with the State of Alaska or with ARM. Addi tionally, he
asked whether Representative Kelly was referring to "the incone
streamrather than the vesting of title."

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY deferred discussion of this to Don Bull ock,
an attorney with Legislative Legal and Research Services.

10: 00: 56 AM

GARY BADER, Chi ef | nvestnent O ficer, Treasury Division,
Department of Revenue (DOR), announced that the ARMB has no
position HB 492. He relayed that the board is scheduled to neet
this week with M. Shefchik and others to ask questions and
gather information to help the board prepare suggestions on how
the legislature mght address the state's unfunded liability:
either all at once or "nore likely in increnments.” He noted
that whereas the cash flow, as proposed in the bill, would equal
nearly a third of the fund, no cash would be generated for an
unknown nunber of vyears. He added that the ARMB would give
further consideration to the possibility that passage of the
bill, "mght ... make [the retirement systen] fully funded, but
wi thout a revenue stream we begin falling further behind by at
| east $400 mllion a year

10: 03: 41 AM

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked M. Bader to explain his relationship to
t he ARMB.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -14- March 20, 2006



MR. BADER clarified that he is a chief investnent officer for
DOR and that the departnent is staff to the ARVB.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH inquired as to whether, the board has the
statutory authority to obtain and nmanage an asset such as the
one proposed in the bill.

MR. BADER offered his wunderstanding that the board does have
this authority, however, indicated that Mchael Barnhill from
the Departnent of Law, would know the answer to this. Then
returning to earlier discussions on the transfer of assets, he
said it was his understanding that according to the wording in
the draft |legislation, once the unfunded liability is fully
addressed, [the assets] revert back to DNR He opined that this
"creates a marketability" and relates to the question of whether
t he asset coul d be noneti zed.

10: 05: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Bader to provide the comittee
the schedul e of paynents on the past service costs. Wereas the
committee does have the anortized rate of contributions required
to pay the debt, he expressed that it does not have a schedul e
of paynents the state is required to nake.

MR. BADER said he could provide the commttee with a close
approxi mati on of these figures.

10: 06: 54 AM

TOM BQUTIN, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Treasury Division, Departnent
of Revenue (DOR), informed the commttee that the departnent
| earned from the auditors, KPMS International, that the asset
woul d have to be "neasurable and have to be available to pay
liabilities in the current year in order to book it as a value."
He offered his wunderstanding that according to generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP), there isn't a way to book
assets that have not actually been purchased. He provided an
exanple of the estimated 7 billion barrels of oil remaining on
the North Slope and explained that these are neither booked nor
depl eted assets by the state. Furthernore, he added, the Al aska
Per manent Fund Corporation (APFC) does not book the royalties it
expects to receive from those barrels of oil. The sanme woul d
apply, he said, to the resources in the tinber and coal
i ndustries; those assets do not appear on the state's bal ance

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -15- March 20, 2006



sheet . He expressed his understanding that GAAP doesn't allow
this.

10: 09: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS opined that there is a difference between
selling the cash flow after devel opnment [of the gas] to doing so
while [the gas] is still under ground and therefore would be
subject to considerably nore rules. He asked M. Boutin how he
predicted it would play out in the long run should the gas be
transferred while it's still in the ground.

MR.  BOUTIN suggested that these mght be questions better
addressed by DNR than DOR He repeated that the KPMG auditors

will look to see that the [gas asset] is neasurable and
avail able to pay current year liabilities. "Whet her there's a
way to have this asset in this bill be both neasurable and
avai l abl e for current year expenditures, | don't know " he said.
10: 11: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG rel ayed that he is a "great skeptic" of
this legislation, however, said he appreciated the resulting
debat e. He asked whether DOR could provide a variation of this
approach that would neet the requirenents stipulated by KPMs and
still fund the liability of the state's retirement system

MR. BOQUTIN said that DOR has not examned other simlar
appr oaches. Regardl ess of the approach, he remarked that an
asset would need to start earning 8.25 percent and that the rate
is assuned by the actuary to be long term doubling every nine
years. He relayed that a booked asset that wasn't appreciating
at an 8.25 percent rate, starts dimnishing the earnings
i mredi atel y. He said that the sponsors of the [retirenent]
pl ans now have sone investnents that are relatively illiquid
such as those investnments in private equity and real estate.
These assets, he explained, were purchased at a fair market
val ue and hopefully bring in a return that is even greater than
the 8.25 percent. "It's an investnent concept ... every plan
sponsor has to have, and anybody tal king about filling this gap
has to have," he opi ned.

10: 15: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired as to whether "lease rentals,
royalties, royalty sale proceeds, net profit shares, and other
receipts related to the gas interests,” listed on page 2, lines

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 16- March 20, 2006



29-30, would be [considered] liquid before gas is flowi ng down
t he pi peline.

MR. BOUTIN said that others at DOR and DNR mi ght know the answer
to this.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY remarked that this problem is much nore
sensitive to the required earnings rate of 8.25 percent than to
the cash fl ows. Wthout the liquidity, he expressed his belief
that the unfunded liability will continue to grow

MR. BOUTIN relayed that the actuary annually provides the anount
required to neet both the future liability and to anortize the
past service liability over 25 years. He explained that
enpl oyers haven't been neeting the contribution rate needed to
anortize the past service liability over this 25-year period
because of the cap set each year on any increases to those rate.
He expressed that he has "never been able to buy into the nodel
that says that enployers are being charged an interest rate of
8. 25 percent on the past service liability."

10: 18: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG referring to an earlier question by
Representative Seaton, said that there would be a value to the
[ gas] asset, regardless of whether it's actually flow ng, but

only if that asset could be alienated. He offered his belief
that, "you could nonetize it but ... only if you sold your
interest.”

10: 18: 50 AM

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noted that it's this commttee's mssion to
explore and determne ways to fund the state's [retirenent]
liability. He referred to the neeting held last year in
Anchorage, with experts from the National Conference of State
Legi sl atures (NCSL) who presented the many ways other states are
addressing their pension fund liabilities. He highlighted that
sone of the states investing in property have done well, unlike
those states investing in pension bonds. Wth Alaska being a
resource-rich state, he remarked that identifying and applying
this kind of asset, and using it as a future revenue stream to
pay off the debt w thout harming the other job functions of the
state government, would seem a viable approach. However, he
opined that "it's nonetizing the asset and getting it to the
ARMB to pay the wunfunded liability [that] seens to be the
probl em "

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -17- March 20, 2006



10: 20: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG returned to his earlier question as to
whether there would be a benefit to assigning a current-

producing oil and gas lease - or any other natural resource
asset - to the [ARMB] to reduce sonme of the unfunded liability.
He suggested that it "may run afoul constitutionally,” but there
may be sonme benefit to it. However, he remarked that it would

decrease the anmobunt of cash flow available for general fund
expendi t ures.

10: 21: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS, in response to Representative Rokeberg's
remarks, opined that North Slope gas is needed "to nmmke it
wort hwhile" and that the conpanies can't book [the gas] unti
FERC sanctions the project; there is no value to conpany
sharehol ders until this is acconplished.

MR. BOUTIN relayed that unlike the oil conpanies, both the state
and APFC have a "higher test" because they conmply with GAAP:
even when oil conpanies book North Slope oil, the state doesn't
book its share of the oil nor does the permanent fund book its
expected royalties fromknown oil reserves.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired as to whether there would be any
problem wth having the state acquire the asset as gas, not
royalty paynents, and then at sonme future point in time, the gas
woul d be sold to create the revenue stream

MR BOQUTIN said it was not clear to himthat this "would all ow

booki ng today an asset value that would help fill this unfunded
litability hole and thereby reduce enployer contribution rates
t oday. " If wording to describe this option were given to him

he said he would present it to the state's actuary and KPMG

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he agreed with M. Boutin's earlier
testinony on the issue of cash paynents versus the 8.25 percent
on the net present value. He opined that what is actually
happening is that the net present value is being determ ned by
back- cal cul ati ons on schedul ed cash paynents.

MR. BQUTI N stated his agreenent.

10: 26: 19 AM

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 18- March 20, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE = ROKEBERG asked M. Bul l ock  whet her this
| egi sl ation, enacted as witten, would run afoul of dedicated
funds as addressed in the state constitution.

10: 26: 30 AM

DON BULLOCK, Attorney, Legislative Legal and Research Services,
Al aska State Legislature, said that because the state's interest
in gas would go to the ARMB and because the earnings from that
woul d be dedicated to offset the unfunded liability, a dedicated

fund issue is raised. He infornmed the commttee that whereas
Article I X, Section 7 of the Alaska State Constitution prohibits
dedicating state funds, Article XlI, Section 7 conpetes wth

this as foll ows:

Menbership in enployee retirenent systens of the State
or its political subdivisions shall constitute a
contractual relationship. Accrued benefits of these
systens shall not be dimnished or inpaired.

MR. BULLOCK surmised, "It's possible that a court will |ook at

these conpeting sections and say that in this case, this is an
exception to the prohibition on dedicated funds."

10: 27: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG inquired as to how the transfer of
Mental Health Trust Authority authorized receipts ("MTAAR') was
justified and asked whether it was a requirenent of the Al aska
St at ehood Act.

MR. BULLOCK said he was not famliar with the MHTAAR, however

he relayed that Section 6, subsection (i) of the Al aska
St at ehood Act, specifies that those underlying mneral resources
bel ow I and received from the federal governnment at the tine of

statehood, can't be transferred away from state. He clarified
that as long as the transfer takes place within the state, such
as to the university or the ARMB, the state would still retain

ownership and not be in violation of the Al aska Statehood Act.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sought confirmation that this sanme act
al so requires the state "l ook after local communities."”

MR. BULLOCK stated his agreenent.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -19- March 20, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Bullock to define the |1egal
paranmeters for the transfer of assets as opposed to the transfer
of a revenue streamw th a conditional rel ease of that asset.

MR. BULLOCK explained the underlying concept of the bill. He
relayed that the state's ownership in the natural gas is
actually being transferred to the ARMB; however, DNR wll
continue to mnage the land on Dbehalf of the ARMB.
Additionally, he highlighted that there's a provision in the
bill that would require the ARMB reinburse DNR for the cost of
t hat rmanagenent. O her aspects of the bill, he noted, include
DNR s managenent of reserves, |l easing gas interests and
deducting the contributions nmade to the permanent fund as well
as to the public school trust fund. The net incone would then
be transferred to the ARMB, he said, and "DNR will continue to
manage the interest just as any other interests that the state
has. "

10: 30: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON posed a situation in which the ARVB w shes
to nonetize its asset - the ownership of the gas - and inquired
as to whether it would be possible for the board to sell it to a

state entity such as University of Al aska.

MR. BULLOCK explained that under the Al aska Statehood Act, the
ARMB "could not sell [its] interest in the gas."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON rephrased his question asking whether it
woul dn't be possible for the ARMB to sell to the university
whi ch has had gas interests transferred to it previously.

MR. BULLOCK said this mght be possible if the asset can be
identified and is sal eabl e.

10: 32: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS sought confirmation of his understanding
that the sale of assets could not be made to a conpany such as
ExxonMbbi | Cor porati on.

MR. BULLOCK said this was correct and further clarified that
under the Al aska Statehood Act, the state's assets nay be |eased
with a royalty interest retained; however, the land and its
underlying resources nmay not be sol d.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 20- March 20, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked whether it was possible to transfer
the royalty itself and not the |and.

MR. BULLOCK explained that then it would becone an issue of
"whether it's the income streamor the gas itself."

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked how aut ononous the ARMB is, whether
it's under the control of the governor, and whether its nenbers
are appointed for specified ternms or serve until just cause for
removal .

MR. BULLOCK said he is uncertain as to the particular status of
the enployees of the board, however, noted that there are
political appointees that serve on the board as well as
representation from DNR and DOR The ARMB, he clarified, has
the fiduciary responsibility to manage the funds responsibly
regardl ess of admnistration changes. Furthernore, he said that
“the obligation under the Alaska State Constitution not to
inmpair the retirenent funds continues regardless of political

entities." In further response to Representative Sanuels as to
possible conflicts of i nt er est anong ARMB nenbers, t he
comm ssioner of DNR and other top admnistrators, opined that
"anything is possible; however, the wunfunded liability wll

continue and the ARMB, regardless of what happens to [its]
investnment in the gas, would have to cone up wth the noney, at
| east some ot her way."

10: 35: 44 AM

M KE BARNHI LL, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Labor and State
Affairs Section, Departnent of Law (DOL), informed the commttee
that although there appears to be constitutional concerns wth
the bill, he is not prepared to provide a definitive answer as
to whether it would actually be in violation of dedicated funds.
He relayed that [DOL] will research this further. He referred
to the 2004 Al aska Suprenme Court decision on the transfer of
university lands. He highlighted that the court determ ned that
this transfer was not an appropriation but rather a non-nonetary
asset transfer. \Wether [HB 492] proposes a simlar transfer of
assets, has not yet been determ ned. He relayed that although
there is constitutional protection of the state pension funds,
he expressed his wuncertainty as to "whether a court would

consider that and say that sonmehow excuses this bill from the
dedi cated funds prohibition." He opined that they are "two
entirely separate provisions in the constitution that aren't
linked or necessarily in conflict.” As per the request of Chair

Weyhrauch, he explained that his last point was in response to

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -21- March 20, 2006



M. Bullock's suggestion that "because there's a constitutional
provision to protect and not to dimnish the retirenent systens,
that sonmehow the courts would give the benefit of the doubt to

the legislature if there was a bill with a potential dedicated
funds violation.” He reiterated his doubt that the courts would
do this.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH relayed that with the likelihood of the bill
bei ng anended, the actions of commttee nmay overtake the |egal
anal ysi s.

10: 39: 40 AM

DICK MYLIUS, Acting Director, Dvision of Mning, Land and
Water, Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR), informed the
conmttee that he was available to answer only those questions
on the DNR fiscal note. He explained that because the note
assumes a transfer of property interests to the [ARMB], it
focuses on federal research and the preparation of deeds. He

hi ghlighted that whereas this falls under the purview of the
Division of Mning, Land and Water, any technical issues are the
purview of the Division of G| and Gas.

10:41: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY inquired as to whether M. Myl i us
envi sioned the actual transfer to be that of the land i nterest.

MR MLIUS offered his wunderstanding that it involves the
transfer of the "gas interest” to the ARMB. In further response
to Representative Kelly, he relayed that any previous testinony
did not alter his understanding of the basis for the cal culation
of the fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired as to whether DNR would foresee
any problens should the ARMB intend to nonetize the interest and
transfer it within the state, such as to the University of
Al aska.

MR. MYLIUS expressed his belief that this would not be a problem
as the university is still an entity of the state. In further
response to Representati ve Seat on regar di ng any ot her
foreseeabl e problens, he suggested that the attorney general's
office mght be better able to address this. He expressed his
uncertainty as to whether the ARMB has the authority to transfer
title of a portion of the state's | and.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -22- March 20, 2006



10: 43: 17 AM

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH announced that HB 492 woul d be hel d over.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY, [referencing the upcom ng ARMB neeting],
in addition to KPMG s approach to liquidity, opined that it
m ght be helpful to know whether the assunption of a gas
contract woul d perfect the useful ness of the asset.

10: 44: 44 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Special Commttee on Ways and Means neeting was adjourned at
10:44 a. m

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 23- March 20, 2006



